
CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

 NOVEMBER 17, 2021 - 6:30 P.M. 

JONESVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT, 116 W. CHICAGO STREET 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / A MOMENT OF SILENCE 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Citizens wanting to address the Council can do so at this time.  Persons addressing the Council are 
requested to give their name and address for the record when called on by the Mayor. 

4. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

A. None 

5. PUBLIC HEARING AND SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION 

A. None 

6. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
A. Consider Bid Award – Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) [Action Item] 

B. City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing (CVTRS)  
Certification of Accountability and Transparency [Action Item] 

C. Board and Commission Appointments  [Action Item] 

D. Fiscal Year 2021-22 1st Quarter Budget Comparison [Information Item] 

7. COUNCIL MINUTES 

A. Consider Minutes of the October 20, 2021 Regular Meeting [Action Item] 
B. Consider Minutes of the November 3, 2021 Special Meeting  [Action Item] 

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

A.   Accounts Payable for November 2021 totalling $63,824.13 [Action Item] 

9. BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES [Action Item] 

A. RFP Review Committee (Humphries, Jr. and Penrose)  

10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

A. Public Safety – Director Etter 
B. Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant – Superintendent Boyle 
C. Department of Public Works – Superintendent Kyser 
D. Cash Report – Finance Director Spahr 

11. ADJOURN  

Police 
Dept. 

Fire 
Dept. 

RULES FOR SPEAKING BEFORE THE JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL (Adopted 09/05/01) 

1. Speakers will have one opportunity to address the Council unless the Mayor allows additional opportunities. 
2. Remarks shall be limited to 5 minutes per person and will also be limited to matters before the Council, to Council 

business or policy, or to issues of community concern or interest that the Council has authority to recommend or act 
upon.  Comments about actions, inactions or performance of the Council are appropriate.  Profane, vulgar or abusive 
language will not be tolerated. 

3. The Mayor may grant a speaker additional time under unusual circumstances. 
4. Council members and staff will not respond to general audience participation.  Matters will be referred to the City 

Manager who will provide reports at a subsequent meeting/date. 
5. The Mayor may call out of order any person who is being disorderly by speaking or otherwise disrupting the 

proceedings.  Such person shall not be permitted to speak and if he/she continues in a disorderly manner, the Mayor 
may declare a recess and/or ask that the person leave or be removed from the meeting. 



 

 

 
To: Jonesville City Council 
From: Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager 
Date: November 10, 2021 
Re: Manager Report and Recommendations – November 17, 2021 Council Meeting 
 
6. A. Consider Bid Award – Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) [Action Item] 

The City completed a joint FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant application with the City of Hillsdale 
and the City of Litchfield.  We were notified in August that we would receive $420,000 in grant dollars, 
to be matched with a local contribution by the three municipalities of $21,000.  The grant is intended to 
purchase the equipment associated with 63 SCBAs that will be divided equally between the communities; 
each community will receive 21 SCBAs.   
 
Sealed bids were opened on Thursday, November 4th.  Two bids were received; the low bid in the amount 
of $441,000 was received from Apollo Fire Equipment Company.   
 
When this expenditure was originally budgeted, it was represented that each municipality would receive 
one-third of the grant and pay their proportionate share of the local match.  However, the Memorandum 
of Understanding that was executed by the Fire Department names the City as the fiduciary for the entire 
grant.  The City will receive 100% of the grant funds, execute the contract with the vendor, invoice the 
municipalities for their share of the local match, and distribute the equipment to the other municipalities.   
 
Between grant proceeds and $7,000 each from Hillsdale and Litchfield, the City’s expenditure for its 
share of the purchase will total $7,000.  This is less than the net cost of just over $9,000 that was 
originally budgeted.  I recommend a motion to grant the bid award to Apollo Fire Equipment Company in 
the amount of $441,000.  Please refer to the attached bid package. 
 
6. B.  City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing (CVTRS) Certification of  

Accountability and Transparency [Action Item] 

In 2015, the Michigan Legislature established the City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing 
(CVTRS) program (a simplified version of the Economic Vitality Incentive Program (EVIP)). These 
programs replace the statutory revenue sharing program for eligible cities, villages and townships.  To 
qualify for the CVTRS payments, eligible local units must certify and submit to the Department of 
Treasury by December 1, 2021 that the following have been made available to the public: 1) a citizen’s 
guide to our most recent local finances; 2) a performance dashboard; 3) a debt service report; and 4) a 
projected budget report of revenues and expenditures comparing the current fiscal year with next fiscal 
year. Staff can provide an interactive demonstration of these documents and recommends a motion to 
authorize filing the Certification of Accountability and Transparency with the Department of Treasury.  
Please refer to the attached CVTRS Certification form. 
 
6. C. Board and Commission Appointments [Action Item] 

Various Board and Commission appointments are necessary due to the expiration of terms in 2021.  All 
new terms will run through the month of November.  A motion to reappoint the following is 
recommended: 
 
Board of Review: Dana Kyser – Reappoint to a three-year term through 2024. 
 
Cemetery Committee: Shea Dow and Charles Pfau – Reappoint to a three-year term through 2024. 
 



Manager Report and Recommendations 
November 17, 2021 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Downtown Development Authority: Don Toffolo and Gale Fix – Reappoint to a four-year term through 
2025. 
 
Planning Commission: Annette Sands – Reappoint to a three-year term through 2024. 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals: Larry Jose and Todd Shroats – Reappoint to a three-year term through 2024. 
 
Jim Taipalus is not seeking reappointment to the Planning Commission. Abe Graves has not yet 
responded regarding his reappointment to the Downtown Development Authority.  
 
Council Representation: Brenda Guyse’s appointment as Council Representative to the Cemetery 
Committee expires in 2021.  George Humphries, Jr.’s appointment as Council Representative to the 
Zoning Board of Appeals also expires.  Council had indicated that it wished to discuss various Council 
appointments at this meeting.  The memorandum regarding all Council appointments provided at the 

October meeting is attached, for reference. 

 
6. D. Fiscal Year 2021-22 1st Quarter Budget Comparison [Information Item] 

The Fiscal Year 2021-22 three-month budget comparison (July 1, 2021-September 30, 2021) is attached.  
Where revenues or expenditures exceed the 25% level for the quarter, notes are provided.  Overall, 
revenues and expenditures are tracking as expected.  Notable expenditures include one-time planned 
capital expenses and storm cleanup.  Finance Director Spahr can address any questions or comments at 
the meeting.  Please refer to the attached Budget Comparison. 
 
9. BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES [Action Item] 
Board and commission minutes for the prior month are attached.  The name of the Council/staff 
representative to the board is indicated in parentheses.  Following any discussion or questions about the 
board minutes, the appropriate action of Council would be a motion to receive and place the minutes on 
file. 
 
Correspondence: 

 Hillsdale County Community Foundation 
 Comcast 



















































 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM: Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager 

 

DATE:  October 15, 2021 

 

SUBJECT: City Council Committee Appointments 

 

 

At the September 15th regular meeting, staff was asked to provide a summary of Council 

appointments to boards and committees.  The following provides that summary, broken into 

categories of City Council Subcommittees, Council representation on City Boards and 

Committees, and Council representation on Outside Boards. 

 

CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEES 

These are subcommittees of the City Council that consist of less than a quorum of Council.  They 

meet for the purpose of providing information and/or recommendations for consideration by the 

Council of the whole regarding their respective topics. 

 

Budget Committee 

Historically has included the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, and one other Council member. 

Members       Term 

Gerry Arno, Mayor      Council Term 

Tim Bowman, Mayor Pro Tem    Council Term 

Jerry Drake, Council      Council Term 

 

Personnel Committee 

Historically has included the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, and one other Council member. 

Members       Term 

Gerry Arno, Mayor      Council Term 

Tim Bowman, Mayor Pro Tem    Council Term 

Delesha Padula, Council     4-Years (ending Nov. 2022) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council Committee Appointments 

October 15, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

 

CITY BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

Many of the boards and committees appointed by the City Council include representation by one 

or more Council members.  In some instances, state statute dictates the member and/or term of 

service. 

 

Cemetery Committee 

Representative       Term 

Brenda Guyse       3-Years (ending Nov. 2021) 

 

Citizenship Committee 

Representatives      Term 

Tim Bowman       3-Years (ending Sept. 2022) 

Brenda Guyse       3-Years (ending Sept. 2023) 

Andy Penrose        3-Years (ending Sept. 2022) 

 

Downtown Development Authority 

Pursuant to statute (PA 57 of 2018), representative shall be the Mayor or his/her designee. 

Representative       Term 

Gerry Arno       Council Term 

 

Local Development Finance Authority 

One member of Council, historically the Mayor 

Representative       Term 

Gerry Arno       Council Term 

 

Planning Commission 

Representative       Term 

Jerry Drake       3-Year Term (ending Nov. 2022) 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 

Representative       Term 

George Humphries, Jr.     3-Year Term (ending Nov. 2021) 

 

Redevelopment RFP Committee 

Representatives      Term 

George Humphries, Jr.     Indefinite (until review is complete) 

Andy Penrose       Indefinite (until review is complete) 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council Committee Appointments 

October 15, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

 

OUTSIDE BOARDS 

Members of the City Council also serve as City representatives to some Boards that are 

composed of multiple jurisdictions. 

 

Headwaters Recreational Authority 

This Authority includes representatives from Fayette Township, City of Hillsdale and Hillsdale 

Township, along with the City. 

Representatives      Term 

Gerry Arno       Council Term 

Jerry Drake       Council Term 

 

Region 2 Planning Commission 

This is a regional planning board that includes representatives of municipalities in Hillsdale, 

Lenawee and Jackson Counties 

Representative       Term 

Jerry Drake       Council Term 



CITY OF JONESVILLE

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2021

YTD BALANCE 2021-22

09/30/2021 AMENDED % BDGT

DESCRIPTION NORMAL (ABNORMAL) BUDGET USED COMMENTS

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 494,912.04 1,573,267.15 31.46% Property tax collection

Expenditures

  101-CITY COUNCIL 7,486.43 24,600.00 30.43% Audit progress billing

  172-CITY MANAGER 26,439.92 117,942.00 22.42%

  191-ELECTIONS 151.03 100.00 151.03% August election supplies/meals

  218-GENERAL OFFICE 54,559.15 230,725.00 23.65%

  247-BOARD OF REVIEW 174.80 875.00 19.98%

  253-TREASURER 727.65 3,250.00 22.39%

  257-ASSESSOR 5,400.00 22,100.00 24.43%

  258-DATA PROCESSING/COMPUTER DEPT. 2,778.95 22,350.00 12.43%

  265-CITY HALL 11,094.98 44,777.00 24.78%

  276-CEMETERY 32,230.59 69,073.00 46.66% Cemetery building siding

  285-FREEDOM MEMORIAL 352.93 1,900.00 18.58%

  301-POLICE DEPARTMENT 84,592.27 317,115.84 26.68% Chief Lance retirement

  336-FIRE DEPARTMENT 31,484.25 317,977.00 9.90%

  410-PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSIONS 1,626.83 11,596.00 14.03%

  441-RADIO TOWER PROPERTY 270.90 0.00 To be reclassified

  442-PARKING LOTS 1,096.53 13,990.00 7.84%

  443-SIDEWALKS 0.00 1,430.00 0.00%

  444-DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 3,855.05 18,420.00 20.93%

  448-STREET LIGHTING 10,827.15 33,000.00 32.81% Electricity

  526-SANITARY LAND FILL 0.00 8,115.00 0.00%

  751-RECREATION DEPARTMENT 0.00 44,865.00 0.00% No 2021 recreation season

  770-PARKS 6,635.63 14,975.00 44.31% Pavilion soffit/storm clean up

  780-RAIL/TRAIL 1,613.04 7,395.00 21.81%

  858-FRINGE BENEFITS 10,645.03 32,820.00 32.43% DPW leave time

  865-INSURANCE 13,554.00 16,000.00 84.71% Work Comp/Prop Liab Ins

  895-PROMOTIONS 0.00 0.00

  897-OTHER ACTIVITIES 113,470.73 219,000.00 51.81% Tax revenue to Local Streets

  TOTAL Expenditures 421,067.84      1,594,390.84     26.41%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 73,844.20        (21,123.69)         

Page 1 of 4



CITY OF JONESVILLE

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2021

YTD BALANCE 2021-22

09/30/2021 AMENDED % BDGT

DESCRIPTION NORMAL (ABNORMAL) BUDGET USED COMMENTS

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 85,840.54 634,279.19 13.53%

Expenditures

  451-STREET CONSTRUCTION 67,246.75 450,000.00 14.94%

  465-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE 21,415.89 124,990.00 17.13%

  474-TRAFFIC CONTROL 5.61 4,400.00 0.13%

  478-WINTER MAINTENANCE 0.00 22,915.00 0.00%

  900-ADMINISTRATION 0.00 12,726.00 0.00%

  TOTAL Expenditures 88,668.25        615,031.00        14.42%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (2,827.71)         19,248.19          -14.69%

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREETS FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 140,326.04 289,390.35 48.49% Tax revenue from Gen Fund

Expenditures

  451-STREET CONSTRUCTION 5,950.00 0.00 Manhole adjustments

  465-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE 20,959.66 80,970.00 25.89% Storm clean up

  474-TRAFFIC CONTROL 255.65 2,314.00 11.05%

  478-WINTER MAINTENANCE 0.00 18,480.00 0.00%

  900-ADMINISTRATION 0.00 129,786.00 0.00%

  TOTAL Expenditures 27,165.31        231,550.00        11.73%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 113,160.73      57,840.35          195.64%

Fund 211 - STATE HIGHWAY FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 7,333.18 35,675.00 20.56%

Expenditures

  465-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE 3,096.22 12,800.00 24.19%

  474-TRAFFIC CONTROL 27.55 850.00 3.24%

  478-WINTER MAINTENANCE 0.00 9,300.00 0.00%

  900-ADMINISTRATION 711.76 12,724.00 5.59%

  TOTAL Expenditures 3,835.53           35,674.00          10.75%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 3,497.65           1.00                    

Page 2 of 4



CITY OF JONESVILLE

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2021

YTD BALANCE 2021-22

09/30/2021 AMENDED % BDGT

DESCRIPTION NORMAL (ABNORMAL) BUDGET USED COMMENTS

Fund 247 - LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

  TOTAL Revenues 5,674.57           362,175.00 1.57%

Expenditures

  729-DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 3,798.77 213,375.00 1.78%

  TOTAL Expenditures 3,798.77           213,375.00        1.78%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 1,875.80           148,800.00        1.26%

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

  TOTAL Revenues 5.77 158,250.00 0.00%

Expenditures

  442-PARKING LOTS 354.82 15,490.00 2.29%

  443-SIDEWALKS 618.01 1,821.00 33.94% Clean sidewalks

  729-DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 3,862.81 50,265.00 7.68%

  733-DOWNTOWN/STREETSCAPE 4,356.86 19,785.00 22.02%

  895-PROMOTIONS 619.10 10,065.00 6.15%

  897-OTHER ACTIVITIES 0.00 56,322.00 0.00%

  TOTAL Expenditures 9,811.60           153,748.00        6.38%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (9,805.83)         4,502.00            -217.81%

Fund 301 - GENERAL DEBT SERVICE FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 0.00 122,142.00 0.00%

Expenditures

  907-D.D.A. BOND 0.00 56,322.00 0.00%

  908-LOCAL STREET BOND 0.00 65,820.00 0.00%

  TOTAL Expenditures -                    122,142.00        0.00%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00

Page 3 of 4



CITY OF JONESVILLE

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2021

YTD BALANCE 2021-22

09/30/2021 AMENDED % BDGT

DESCRIPTION NORMAL (ABNORMAL) BUDGET USED COMMENTS

Fund 590 - SEWER SYSTEM FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 201,188.05 845,200.00 23.80%

Expenditures

  527-SEWAGE DISPOSAL 139,782.77 1,327,216.26 10.53%

  TOTAL Expenditures 139,782.77      1,327,216.26     10.53%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 61,405.28        (482,016.26)      -12.74%

Fund 591 - WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 100,227.05 402,950.00 24.87%

Expenditures

  536-IRON REMOVAL PLANT 39,971.17 505,679.48 7.90%

  537-WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 12,347.17 217,660.00 5.67%

  TOTAL Expenditures 52,318.34        723,339.48        7.23%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 47,908.71        (320,389.48)      -14.95%

Fund 661 - MOTOR VEHICLE POOL FUND

  TOTAL Revenues 35,358.16 184,550.00        19.16%

Expenditures

  270-DPW BUILDING AND GROUNDS 6,176.86           25,473.00 24.25%

  896-MOTOR VEHICLE POOL 18,165.00 505,280.00 3.60% Carryover dump trk/no fire trk

  TOTAL Expenditures 24,341.86        530,753.00        4.59%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 11,016.30        (346,203.00)      -3.18%

Fund 703 - CURRENT TAX FUND

TOTAL Revenues 84.47 0.00 Interest earnings

TOTAL Expenditures 0.00 0.00

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 84.47 0.00

TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS 1,070,949.87   4,607,878.69     23.24%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS 770,790.27      5,547,219.58     13.90%

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 300,159.60      (939,340.89)      31.95%

Page 4 of 4



**Subject to Approval** 

 

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Minutes of October 20, 2021 

 

A meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at the 
Jonesville Police Department, 116 W. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  Mayor Gerry Arno called the 
meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Council members present were:  Tim Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda 
Guyse, George Humphries Jr, Delesha Padula  and Andy Penrose.   
 
Also Present:  Manager Gray, Attorney Lovinger, Finance Director Spahr, WWTP Supt. Boyle, 
Public Safety Director Etter, Public Works Supt. Kyser, Kathy Humphries, Margaret Hughes,  Carol 
Burton, Corey Murray, Dean Adair Sr., Lisa Adair, Dean Adair, Joe Luna, Rick Riggs, Deb 
Hollister, Dave Betz and Kathy Schmitt.    
 
The Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence was led by George Humphries Jr.  
 
A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Jerry Drake to approve the agenda as 
presented with one addition:  6. E  Resolution 2021-07 – State Disaster Contingency Fund.  All in 
favor.  Motion carried.  
 
Kathy Schmitt, Hillsdale County Commissioner, gave a brief update.  
 
Jerry Drake made a motion and was supported by Brenda Guyse to waive the purchasing policy and 
to award the contract to the sole-source contractor for the purchase of a Plant Air Unit for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant to Griffiths Mechanical in the amount of $29,135.00.  All in favor.  
Motion carried.  
 
A motion was made by Jerry Drake and supported by Tim Bowman to approve the continued 
membership with Region 2 Planning Commission (R2PC) and payment of the fiscal year 2021 dues 
in the amount of $609.66.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  
 
Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by Delesha Padula to cast the ballot for the 
proposed candidates for the MML Liability and Property Pool Board of Director’s election.  All in 
favor.  Motion carried.  
 
Per the Council’s request, a list of City Council Committee Appointments was presented to Council.  
The summary provided a break-down of categories of City Council Subcommittees, Council 
representation on City Boards and Committees, and Council representation on Outside Boards.  
 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the Resolution 
2021-07 – State Disaster Contingency Fund for reimbursement of fuel and equipment costs and fire 
department wages for the storm on August 12, 2021 which was declared a State of Emergency.  
Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Tim Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Delesha 
Padula, Andy Penrose and Gerry Arno.  Nays:  None.  Motion carried.  
 
Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by Tim Bowman to approve the minutes of  the 
September 15, 2021 regular meeting.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  
 



A motion was made by Jerry Drake and supported by Andy Penrose to approve the Accounts 
Payable for October 2021 in the amount of $103,478.59.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  
 
Board and Commission minutes were provided to Council for their review.  They included the 

Jonesville Planning Commission and Region 2 Planning Commission.   

Updates were given by Department Heads, Manager Gray and Council.   

Mayor Arno adjourned the meeting at 7:06 p.m. 

 

______________________________   _____________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means      Gerald E. Arno 
Clerk        Mayor 



**Subject to Approval** 

 

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Special Meeting 

Minutes of November 3, 2021 

 

A special meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Wednesday, November 3, 2021 at the 
Jonesville Police Department, 116 W. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  Mayor Gerry Arno called the 
meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Council members present were:  Tim Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda 
Guyse, George Humphries Jr, Delesha Padula  and Andy Penrose.   
 
Also Present:  Manager Gray, Attorney Lovinger, Public Safety Director Etter, Corey Murray, Dean 
Adair, Lisa Adair, Joe Luna, Rick Riggs, Scott Lucas, Adam Rose, Neil Finegan,  Mike Sweeney, 
and Dave Betz.    
 
The Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence was led by Delesha Padula.   
 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Jerry Drake to approve the agenda as 
presented.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  
 
Manager Gray and Public Safety Director Etter provided information regarding the purchase of a 
new fire truck, 2021 Fouts 4 Initial Attack Fire Apparatus.  This vehicle has been used in the 
manufacturer’s sales demonstrations, has not been used in fire service.  The vehicle has 
approximately 2000 miles and all of the factory warranties will apply.  The fire truck is located in 
Georgia with the manufacturer.  The vehicle will exceed the amount budgeted for the truck 
replacement, but there are sufficient funds in the Fire Equipment Reserve.  Various questions were 
asked by Council.   
 
A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Jerry Drake to approve the purchase of the 
2021 Fouts 4 Initial Attack Fire Apparatus in the amount of $238,000.  All in favor.  Motion 
carried.  
 

Mayor Arno adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 

 

______________________________   _____________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means      Gerald E. Arno 
Clerk        Mayor 



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

1/2Page: 11/10/2021
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

11/18/2021

401.09 CEMETERY - POLE BARN LIGHTAMERICAN COPPER & BRASS, LLC
48.00 JFD - LEATHER HELMET FRONTAPOLLO FIRE EQUIPMENT CO.
58.96 JFD - FIRE HOOD

106.96 

600.00 CLEANING SERVICESBAKER, VICKI/B & B CLEANING, LLC
730.95 MVP - OIL/ACCT #26BRINER OIL CO., INC.
159.88 JFD - GASOLINE/ACCT #25
269.00 MVP - BULK TANK

1,159.83 

787.00 ASSESSING SOFTWARE SUPPORT FEEBS&A SOFTWARE
10,188.00 CEMETERY MAINT/SEXTON SERVICESBUTTERS EXCAVATING & LAWN CARE, LLC

15.00 JPD - OUTSIDE WINDOW CLEANINGCLEAR VIEW B.R. LLC
43.19 CEMETERY ELECTRICITYCONSUMERS ENERGY

1,284.83 IRON REMOVAL PLANT ELECTRICITY
418.50 DDA BUILDING ELECTRICITY

1,746.52 

62.50 WWTP - COPIER SERVICECURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONS
16.60 COPIER MAINTENANCE
32.67 OFFICE SUPPLIES

111.77 

592.98 WATER TOWER INTERNET SERVICEDMCI BROADBAND, LLC
592.98 IRON REMOVAL PLANT INTERNET SERVICE

1,185.96 

320.31 MVP - VEHICLE REPAIRD-P EQUIPMENT CO.
268.80 MILEAGE/NEGOTIATOR SCHOOLETTER, KURT

20,395.00 WWTP - MAKE-UP AIR UNITGRIFFITHS MECH CONTRACTING, INC.
28.75 UB refund for account: 000268-01HEAD ILENE

136.64 WASTEWATER CLASSHUGHES, ED
520.00 WATER - CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAMHYDROCORP, INC
249.00 WWTP - NEW COMPUTER SOFTWAREI.T. RIGHT

2,660.85 WWTP - SUPPLIESIDEXX DISTRIBUTION CORP.
70.27 SUPPLIES/REPAIRSJONESVILLE HARDWARE
41.35 MVP - TOOLS/JPD - REPAIRSJONESVILLE LUMBER
49.53 CITY HALL WATER/SEWERJONESVILLE, CITY OF

190.96 JFD WATER/SEWER
49.53 JPD - WATER/SEWER
49.53 DPW WATER/SEWER

247.12 WWTP WATER/SEWER
51.19 WRIGHT ST PARK WATER/SEWER

637.86 

41.98 JPD - OIL CHANGE/2021 FORDKEN STILLWELL FORD-MERCURY, INC.
1,200.00 ST HWY/CEMETERY - STUMP GRININGLEININGER, DEAN/DBA MR STUMPGRINDER

63.91 UB refund for account: 000560-02LEISING SCOTT & JENNIFER
92.50 LEGAL FEESLOVINGER & THOMPSON, P.C.

214.56 DDA - DECORATIVE STREETLIGHT BULBSMCGOWAN ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC.
50.91 IRON REMOVAL PLANT GAS SERVICEMICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES
44.91 JFD GAS SERVICE
38.31 JPD GAS SERVICE
56.71 GAS LIGHT SERVICE
38.31 DPW GAS SERVICE
43.15 CITY HALL GAS SERVICE

591.83 WWTP GAS SERVICE
864.13 

2,516.96 MOWING/LEAF PICK UP SERVICESMICHIGAN LAWN & LANDSCAPE
480.00 CDL CONSORTIUMMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 

2,526.00 WORK COMP QUARTERLY INVOICEMML WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND
328.00 JPD - TINT FRONT DOORMYSTIC CAR CARE
129.00 WATER - TESTINGNSI LAB SOLUTIONS

1,121.48 MVP - SUPPLIES/REPAIRSPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE
278.05 POSTAGE - WATER/SEWER BILLSPOSTMASTER
121.66 JFD - HOSE TESTERRIGGS, RICK
250.99 MVP - SMALL TOOLSSHARE CORPORATION

1,340.28 WATER - WSSN FEESTATE OF MICHIGAN



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

2/2Page: 11/10/2021
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

11/18/2021

980.71 GASOLINESUPERFLEET MASTERCARD PROGRAM
636.41 JFD - INSURANCE RENEWALTHOMPSON ROBERTS AGENCY
124.98 CEMETERY/WWTP SUPPLIESTRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN

3,500.00 ST HWY/MAJOR STREETS - SIDEWALK REPAIRSTREMAINE, GERALD/DBA GLT CONCRETE
280.15 JFD - TURNOUT GEAR REPAIR/KIBERTTURNOUT MANAGEMENT
35.37 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTALUNIFIRST CORPORATION
26.22 MVP - SHOP TOWELS
35.37 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
29.97 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
14.50 JPD - FLOOR MATS
26.22 MVP - SHOP TOWELS
29.97 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL

197.62 

54.33 WATER - SUPPLIESUSA BLUEBOOK
962.18 WWTP - SUPPLIES
380.21 WWTP - SUPPLIES

1,396.72 

25.00 DPW CELL PHONEVERIZON WIRELESS
3,120.67 MVP - TRUCK 4/TRANSMISSIONWELLS EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.

361.41 WWTP - REPAIRSWESTECH, INC

Total: 63,824.13 



**Subject to Approval** 

 

RFP Review Committee  

Minutes of October 27, 2021 

 

A meeting of the RFP Review Committee was held on Wednesday, October 27, 2021 at the 

Jonesville Police Department, 116 W. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  DDA Chairman Don Toffolo 

called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  RFP Review Committee members present were Council 

Members Andy Penrose and George Humphries Jr., Planning Commission Members Annette Sands 

and Charles Crouch, DDA Members Don Toffolo and Joe Ruden.  

 

Also present:  Manager Jeff Gray and David Betz.  

 

The Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence was led by Don Toffolo.  

 

A motion was made by Annette Sands and supported by Andy Penrose to approve the agenda as 

presented.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  

 

Annette Sands made a motion to nominate Don Toffolo as Chairman for the RFP Review 

Committee.  The motion was supported by George Humphries Jr.   All in favor.  Motion carried.  

 

Manager Gray discussed the Klein Tool Building with the committee.  The building housed Vaco 

Products from 1945 – 1986, Klein Tool from 1986 – 2008, and remained vacant until 2010 when 

the City purchased it.  Martinrea-Jonesville LLC utilized the building for storage until 

approximately 2015 – 2016.  Several people have shown interest over the years, but tend to shy 

away as the environmental aspect of the building is unknown.   The objectives of the Downtown 

Development Authority (DDA) have been that they prefer a business with compatible use to the 

downtown district, both use and appearance, agree that it is not ideal for Industrial usage, and look 

to get the building back on the tax roll along with creation of jobs for the community.   

 

The committee agreed to evaluate the RFP’s received with a scoring criteria, anecdotal review, and 

feel this is important with multiple applications.  One proposal was received and discussed among 

the committee.  It was agreed that they would request additional information for the proposal 

received and wait and see if other proposals were received before the next scheduled meeting.   

 

The next scheduled meeting will be on Wednesday, December 1, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Submitted by,  

 

 

Jeff Gray, Manager  



   JONESVILLE                                                                      

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

116 W. Chicago St.                       (517) 849-2101 

Jonesville, MI 49250-1106               Fax (517) 849-2520                    

 

 

 

ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR OCTOBER 2021 

 

 

Total reports written: 56 

Break and Enter: 1 (entry w/o auth.) 

Damage to Property: 2 

Larceny: 3 

OUIL: 0 

Alcohol Violations: 0  

Retail Fraud: 4 

Obstructing Justice:  

Public Roadway Accidents: 6 

Private Property Accidents: 3 

Driving Law Violations: 0 

Other Arrests:  12 (warrants, traffic-DWLS/Revoked, etc.) 

Medical Emergency: 6 

Overdose: 0 

Mental Petitions Served: 1 

Nuisance Animals: 1 

General Assistance: 6 

Traffic/Moving Violations: 55 

Carrying Concealed Weapon: 0  

Suspicious Situation: 0 

Burglary Alarm: 0 

Domestic Violence: 1 

Natural Death: 1 

Felonious Assault: 1 

 

October Patrol Shift Coverage:    75%                                                                                                                            

 

 

 



   JONESVILLE                                                                      

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

116 W. Chicago St.                       (517) 849-2101 

Jonesville, MI 49250-1106               Fax (517) 849-2520                    

 

I have just a few items to mention concerning both departments. The police 

department is seeing an influx of homeless individuals. Sgt. Albright removed two 

subjects from an abandon building and we’ve had complaints of individuals 

sleeping in the parks. This especially concerns me with the colder months coming 

and the potential of fires being started in vacant buildings so they stay warm. I’d 

also like to remind everyone to keep their vehicles locked to deter crimes of 

opportunity with the holiday months approaching.  

 

The fire department has started hose testing which will be wrapping up in early 

November. All of the outdated turnout equipment has been taken out of service 

for active-duty personnel. Also, SCBA air mask fit testing was completed this 

month. Just a reminder to please replace your smoke detector and carbon 

monoxide batteries with fresh ones.     

   



JONESVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT

October 2021 SUMMARY

20

225 City Fayette Scipio Mutual Training

63 46 26 56 34

6 0 1 9 4

Members Date Location City Fayette Scipio Mutual Training

6 10/2/2021 MURPHY ST X

7 10/3/2021 2900 E CHICAGO RD X

15 10/6/2021 STATION X

4 10/9/2021 215 READING AVE X

10 10/10/2021 208 HARLEY ST X

6 10/13/2021 165 SPRUCE ST X

8 10/13/2021 2760 E CHICAGO RD X

12 10/13/2021 STATION X

5 10/16/2021 206 FRANKLIN ST X

7 10/17/2021 401 E CHICAGO ST X

8 10/17/2021 519 EAST ST X

9 10/17/2021 109 W BACON ST X

8 10/20/2021 150 SPRUCE ST X

8 10/22/2021 458 SALEM DR X

14 10/27/2021 STATION X

(517) 849-2101

(517) 849-2520 Fax

Total calls for 2021

114 W. Chicago St.

Jonesville, MI 410250

Total Calls in October

STATION CLEAN UP

Type of call

WIRES DOWN

ASSIST MEDICAL

MEETING

ASSIST MEDICAL

ASSIST MEDICAL

CO ALARM

WIRES DOWN

TRAINING

WIRES DOWN

ASSIST MEDICAL

ASSIST MEDICAL

STRUCTURE FIRE

ASSIST MEDICAL

ASSIST MEDICAL



4 10/28/2021 429 EVANS ST X

6 10/30/2021 260 GAIGE ST X

5 10/30/2021 261 GAIGE ST X

7 10/31/2021 STATION X

8 10/31/2021 9840 COBB LAKE X

FIRE DISREGARD

FIRE DISREGARD

HOSE TESTING

ASSIST MEDICAL

WIRES DOWN



 

 

 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 

OCTOBER 2021 
 

SUBMITTED: 2021      

 

WATER FLOW    WASTEWATER FLOW 
MAXIMUM  263,000  MAXIMUM  348,800 
MINIMUM  123,000  MINIMUM  227,100 
AVERAGE  176,000  AVERAGE  258,500 
TOTAL  5.4446 MG  TOTAL  8.0126 MG 
 

CALLOUTS:  1 at the Water Plant, 2 at the Wastewater Plant  
 
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
 
The plant was in compliance with the NPDES permit limitations during the month of  
September 2021. 
 
The Wastewater Plant Laboratory processed 108 Bacteria tests, 24 Nitrate tests and 15 
Nitrite tests.  The annual totals are as follows: 

• Bacteria Test----931 

• Nitrate Tests----240 

• Nitrite Tests-----116 
The total paid walk-in business was $1040.00.   
 
Grease was removed from the inlet works using the vactor. 
 
The grit building MUA has been ordered. 
 
The casework for the lab remodel has been pushed out to January. 
 
The shredder has ben replaced in the inlet works. Thanks to Mike and the backhoe. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand 
NPDES Permit 30 Day Average Limit is 4 mg/l 

NPDES Permit Daily Maximum is 10 mg/l  
The BOD-5 test tells us how much of the oxygen in the water is being used up or 
demanded by the waste in the water.  High oxygen demand will deplete the oxygen in the 
receiving water.  This will have adverse effects on the quality of life (fish) in the  
Receiving stream. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—2.3 mg/l    

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—98.4 % 

Daily Maximum—3 mg/l 

 
Total Suspended Solids 

NPDES Permit Limit is 20 mg/l 

Suspended solids are very important in controlling the process in the plant.  Suspended 
solids are removed via settling clarifiers and are pumped to the anaerobic digester for 
treatment.  The digested biosolids are applied to farmland at agronomic rates as fertilizer. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—1.2 mg/l 

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—99.0% 

 
Total Phosphorus 

NPDES Permit Limit 1 mg/l Year Round 

Phosphorus is a nutrient that promotes growth.  In fact, farmers use phosphorus as a 
fertilizer on crop lands.  Phosphorus is found in many cleaning agents and industrial 
processes.  Excessive phosphorus in wastewater promotes the excessive growth of micro 
and macro-organisms in the receiving stream.  In other words, phosphorus promotes 
excessive growth of algae and seaweed.  These plants demand oxygen from the water and 
tend to decrease the quality of life in the receiving stream. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—0.30 mg/l 

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—92.5% 

 

Ammonia Nitrogen 

NPDES Permit 30 Day Average Limit is 0.5 mg/l 

NPDES Permit Daily Maximum is 2 mg/l 

Ammonia Nitrogen is the result of bacterial decomposition of organic nitrogen. Examples 
Of organic nitrogen include animal and plant protein, amino acids and urea from urine.  
Ammonia nitrogen is a very unstable form of nitrogen.  In wastewater plants ammonia 
nitrogen is oxidized to form nitrite nitrogen.  Further oxidation of nitrite nitrogen will 
form the stable compound called nitrate nitrogen.  This process is called nitrification and 
occurs in the trickling filter towers.  If nitrification does not occur in the treatment plant, 
it will occur in the receiving stream once again depriving oxygen from the aquatic 
population.  Because of the sensitive nature of the microorganisms involved in the 
nitrification process, the ammonia nitrogen limits are about the hardest to hit. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—0.035mg/l 

Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—99.9% 

Jonesville Daily Maximum—0.15 mg/l  
 
Brian Boyle 



 

   Jonesville Dept of Public Works
 October 2021

   Monthly Report

Maintenance Salt Chloride Top Dirt COLD MIX

0 HR DT

STATE HIGHWAYS 0 HR OT 0 Yd 0 Ton

0 HR DT

MAJOR STREETS 0 HR OT 0 Gal 0 Gal 0 Yd 0 Ton

0 HR DT

LOCAL STREETS 0 HR OT 0 Gal 0 Gal 0 Yd 0 Ton

 0 HR DT

PARKING LOTS 0 HR OT 0 Gal 0 Gal 0 Yd 0 Ton

POLICE STATION 0 HR OT 0 Gal 0 Gal 0 Yd

FIRE DEPARTMENT 0 HR OT 0 Gal 0 Gal 0 Yd

SEWER DEPT 0 HR DT

LDFA 0 HR OT 0 Gal 0 Gal 0 Ton

0 HR DT

WATER 0 HR OT         0 Ton

State Police 0 HR OT

There were no call outs.

We finished the brush pickup from the storm in August.

We finished the tree and brush pickup at the Cemetery.

The Rail Trail was mowed.

McNair Construction finished the pole building at the Cemetery.

We installed a new water service for the new house at 304 West Street.

We installed a new curb stop at 665 Langs Dr. as it was leaking.

We installed new LED lights on W. Chicago St. and S. M-99 for the DDA.

Fire Hydrants were flushed this month.

The Wright Street bathrooms were winterized.

We have started the maintenance on the equipment.

Storm drains were cleaned on State, Major and Local Streets.

Mike Kyser



CITY OF JONESVILLE

CASH BALANCES

October-2021 BANK BALANCE

GENERAL FUND:

General Fund Now Checking 101-000-001 204,229.36

General Fund CLASS Acct 101-000-007 1,496,044.76

General Fund Cemetery CLASS Acct 101-000-007.100 93,111.84

General Fund Alloc of Assets CLASS 101-000-007.200 413,639.46

MAJOR STREETS:

Major Streets Now Checking 202-000-001 43,054.69

Major Streets CLASS Acct 202-000-007 411,950.80

LOCAL STREETS:

Local Streets Now Checking 203-000-001 44,783.59

Local Streets CLASS Acct 203-000-007 760,868.00

STATE HIGHWAY:

State Highway Now Checking 211-000-001 10,281.05

L.D.F.A.:

LDFA Operating Now Checking 247-000-001 2,167.01

LDFA Operating CLASS Acct 247-000-007 2,369,101.76

D.D.A.:

DDA Now Checking 248-000-001 3,572.77

DDA Operating CLASS Acct 248-000-007 107,101.35

SEWER FUND:

Sewer Receiving Now Checking 590-000-001 76,139.33

Sewer Bond & Interest Checking 590-000-001.300 10.00

Sewer Receiving CLASS Acct 590-000-007 422,565.52

Sewer Plant Improv. CLASS Acct 590-000-007.200 1,304,996.51

WATER FUND:

Water Receiving Now Checking 591-000-001 92,485.55

Water Receiving CLASS Acct 591-000-007 302,486.74

Water Plant Improvement CLASS Acct 591-000-007.100 384,859.11

Water Bond Reserve CLASS 591-000-007.200 24,439.24

Water RR&I Reserve CLASS 591-000-007.250 20,532.94

Water Tower Maint CLASS Acct 591-000-007.300 52,176.40

Water Maint CLASS Acct 591-000-007.400 51,368.79

MOTOR VEHICLE POOL:

Motor Vehicle Pool Now Checking 661-000-001 18,000.80

Equip. Replace CLASS - Police Car 661-000-007.301 5,476.08

Equip. Replace CLASS - Fire Truck 661-000-007.336 241,697.74

Equip. Replace CLASS - DPW Equip 661-000-007.463 128,160.01

Equip. Replace CLASS - WWTP/Vactor 661-000-007.590 36,594.93

CURRENT TAX:

Current Tax Checking 703-000-001 12,833.66

Current Tax Savings Account 703-000-002 119,128.84

PAYROLL FUND CHECKING: 750-000-001 408.29

Lenore\Monthly\Interest and Cash Balances - MMYY.xls GRAND TOTAL 9,254,266.92














	Agenda 11-17-21.pdf (p.1)
	Memo 11-17-21.pdf (p.2-3)
	6A-SCBA Bid-Apollo.pdf (p.4-19)
	6B-CVTRS Information.pdf (p.20-27)
	6C-Council Committee Appts.pdf (p.28-30)
	6D-Qtrly Financial Report - 09-21.pdf (p.31-34)
	7A-Minutes - 10-20-21.pdf (p.35-36)
	7B-Minutes - 11-03-21 Special Meeting.pdf (p.37)
	8A-Accts Payable - Nov 2021.pdf (p.38-39)
	9A-RFP Committee Minutes 10-27-21.pdf (p.40)
	10A-Public Safety - October Report.pdf (p.41-44)
	10B-WWTP - October Report.pdf (p.45-46)
	10C-DPW - October Reprt.pdf (p.47)
	10D-Cash - October Report.pdf (p.48)
	C1-HCCF Letter.pdf (p.49-53)
	C2-Comcast.pdf (p.54)

